

Coastal Bend District 4-H Council By-laws
Adopted February 7, 1961
Revised August 11, 2007

1. **Name:** The name of this organization shall be the Coastal Bend District 4-H Council.
2. **Purpose:** The purpose shall be to develop leadership, to promote and encourage 4-H work and to coordinate 4-H activities in the district.
3. **Membership:**

Membership in the Coastal Bend District 4-H Council is open to all youth regardless of socioeconomic level, race, color, sex, religion, disability or national origin. Regular membership shall consist of four elected delegates from each County 4-H Council and the Executive Committee of the District 4-H Council. The current Chair and the vice-Chair of each County 4-H Council will be two of the delegates. In the event a regularly elected delegate cannot serve, an alternate may be selected by the county concerned with the alternate having all rights and privileges of a regularly elected delegate in the absence of the regularly elected delegate.

Council members shall be at least 13 years of age on September 1 and not more than 19 years of age on August 31 of the current year.

The term of office of District Council Members shall be from September 1 of the current year to August 31 of the succeeding year.

Only the county with the District Council Chair serving as a county voting delegate, has the right to elect an additional delegate to District Council.

In the event a county must replace a District 4-H Council member, it must be done in writing and submitted to the District Office.

4. **Officers**

The officers of the Coastal Bend District 4-H Council shall be: Chair, 1st Vice Chair, 2nd Vice Chair, 3rd Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Public Relations Chair, and Parliamentarian. The Chair, 1st Vice Chair and 2nd Vice Chair must reach their 16th birthday on or before August 31 of the calendar year in which they are installed as district officers and must not have reached their 19th birthday on or before August 31 of the calendar year in which they are installed as district officers. The remaining officers shall reach their 15th birthday on or before August 31 of the calendar year in which they are installed as district officers.

Officers shall be elected from the members who are currently serving on District Council. If these candidates are not eligible to run or do not wish to run, the county may select a representative to run for district office in accordance with their county standing rules. Elections shall be conducted by secret ballot. A majority constitutes an election. The final outcome of elections will be determined by a cumulative score for each candidate based on a speech, interview, and popular vote as documented in the *District 11 4-H Council Election Procedures*.

If the Chairman and 1st Vice Chairman are not a minority, then the only candidates eligible to run for 2nd Vice Chairman are minority candidates eligible to serve on state council. If no minorities are eligible to run for 2nd Vice Chairman, then all officer candidates can run for the position but are not eligible to serve on Texas 4-H Council. If a minority has been elected to the Chairman or 1st Vice Chairman position, then any officer candidate meeting the Texas 4-H Council age

requirements is eligible to run for 2nd Vice Chairman and will serve as a district representative to Texas 4-H Council.

All candidates for District office must complete an officer candidate application for nomination. Applications will be due to the District Office with county delegate applications for District Leadership Lab or its substitute.

5. **Term of Office**

The officers shall be elected annually and shall not be eligible for the same office for more than one term. Officers shall be elected to a higher office if elected to an office a second time. The order of offices in descending order will be Chair, 1st Vice Chair, 2nd Vice Chair, 3rd Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Parliamentarian, and Public Relations Chair. The term of office shall be from District Leadership Lab or its substitute to the end of District Leadership Lab or its substitute the next year.

6. **Annual Meeting and Election of Officers**

The annual meeting for the purpose of election of officers shall be held at District Leadership Lab or its substitute. Each county will be allowed to nominate two officer candidates provided at least one is a minority.

7. **Executive Committee**

- A. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the following offices: Chair, 1st Vice Chair, 2nd Vice Chair, 3rd Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer; Public Relations Chair, and Parliamentarian.
- B. There shall be only one member of the Executive Committee from any one county. Exception: If a county has a minority candidate, that county may have two officers on the Executive Committee.

8. **Standing Committees**

The standing committees shall be:

- Food and Nutrition
- Clothing and Textiles
- Livestock
- Photography
- Wildlife
- Horse
- Companion/Small Animal
- Public Speaking

At least one member of the Executive Committee shall serve on each standing committee.

Committee membership shall consist of the Coastal Bend District 4-H Council delegates. Membership on the Standing Committees will be rotated periodically as deemed advisable.

Additional committees may be appointed at any time and in any way the Executive Committee may deem advisable.

9. **Delegates to the Texas 4-H Council**

Delegates to Texas 4-H Council shall consist of the District Council Chair, 1st Vice Chair, and 2nd Vice Chair, provided that at least one of these delegates is a minority. Each of these three individuals must be at least 16 but not more than 18 years of age as of August 31 of the current calendar year. Should any of these not be able to serve, a delegate will be selected from the Executive Committee in this order: 3rd Vice, Secretary, Treasurer, Parliamentarian, and Public Relations Chair, provided the minority requirement is met.

10. **Meetings**

The District 4-H Council shall meet two times a year, and call meetings when necessary.

11. **Voting Body**

The voting body will consist of the county delegates or designated alternates and District Council Chair. Designated alternates must be submitted to the District office in writing. Robert's Rules of Order will be the guide for all parliamentary procedure matters. County delegates or designated alternates must be present to vote. **District Council officers that have graduated are NOT allowed to vote in officer elections at Leadership Lab.**

12. **Quorum**

A quorum shall consist of 21 members. Ten counties shall be represented.

13. **Amendments**

These by-laws may be amended by a majority vote of the members present and voting at any regular meeting of the District 4-H Council at which a quorum is present. Members shall be notified in writing at least seven days before the date on which the amendment is to be enacted.

14. **Council Advisors**

One male and one female County Extension Agent will be designated by the District Office to serve as Advisors to District Council. Advisors will serve a two year term with advisors rotating off in alternate years. The District 4-H Specialist shall also serve as an advisor to District 4-H Council.

15. **Conflicts with Texas 4-H Council By-laws**

Texas 4-H Council by-laws will supercede District Council by-laws in the event of a conflict.

16. **Coastal Bend District 4-H Council Resolution**

Be it resolved by the District 4-H Council that no member shall be in possession or consume alcoholic beverages, tobacco products or illegal drugs while traveling to and from or participating in 4-H activities. In the event a District Council member violates this resolution, disciplinary action, including possible dismissal, will be taken by the Executive Committee with the District Extension Directors and Council Advisors serving as advisors.

District Council Officers will sign a "Code of Conduct" at the beginning of their term of office. This Code of Conduct will be signed by their parents/guardians and kept on file at the District Office.